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Daddy’s Truck

Season 1
Episode Number: 1
Season Episode: 1

Originally aired: Friday August 14, 2020
Writer: Kathleen Jordan
Director: Jesse Peretz
Show Stars: Maddie Phillips (Sterling Wesley), Anjelica Bette Fellini (Blair Wesley),

Kadeem Hardison (Bowser Jenkins), Virginia Williams (Debbie Wesley),
Mackenzie Astin (Anderson Wesley), Shirley Rumierk (Yolanda Carrion)

Guest Stars: Gabrielle Byndloss (Janet), Charity Cervantes (Hannah B), Nicholas
Cirillo (Jennings), Douglas Dickerman (Hutch / Man #3), Lexi Durham
(Fellowship Student), Carolyn Jones Ellis (Cathy), Myles Evans (Miles),
Wynn Everett (Ellen Johnson), Eric Graise (Ezekiel), Devon Hales
(April Stevens), Spencer House (Luke Creswell), Pierce Lackey (John
Stevens), Terry Lamothe (Student), Edward L. Oliver (Perish mem-
ber), Rahiem Riley (Construction Worker), John Rymer (Man 1), Estes
Tarver (Man #2), Claudia Caceres (RV Park Pregnant Teen), Jay D. Ka-
cho (Golfer), Malik Norman (Debate Student)

Summary: Sterling and Blair seem perfect little angels — ’til they crash into
bounty-hunting Bowser. But Sterling’s halo slips.

The episode begins with Sterling propos-
ing sex with her partner Luke in a
car outside Willingham Academy. Her
boyfriend is religious and starts talking
about his virginity and marriage. Ster-
ling starts talking in Bible phrases and
puts a condom on him and they have sex
— afterwards, Sterling tells her boyfriend
that love covers a multitude of sins. In
the other car, Blair is giving Jennings a
handjob and asks for a review after. Ster-
ling and Blair are twin sisters.

In the car ride home, twin sisters talk
about their virginities and Sterling reveals she has just lost her virginity to Luke. The news
shocks Blair and they end up in a car accident.

They approach the other car and there’s a man inside who is apparently evading bail. Sterling
approaches him with a shotgun and asks the man to get out of the car — we were not expecting
such ferocity from these characters so early on. Another car drives up and a man gets out and
tells them to not steal his bounty and offers his share of the prize; he thinks the twins are bounty
hunters — they need the money to fix their father’s truck.

The man (now known as Cayden) from the accident suddenly runs away so the twins run after
him. They manage to catch him and agree to half of the cash with the bounty hunter.

At Willingham Academy, Sterling is chosen as the year’s Fellowship leader. Sterling stands up
and talks about God’s presence and how she looks forward to leading everyone to Jesus. Luke
congratulates her and she is very awkward with him. The teacher tells Sterling about abstinence
and the importance of it.

Sterling tells Blair that she cannot be Fellowship leader because she’s had sex but Blair
disagrees and tells her to be a "lying sl*t".
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April, a student who is clearly jealous, congratulates Sterling for the leadership but when
Sterling drops her bag, April sees the condom wrapper and walks off — Sterling is mortified.
She’s been figured out by her arch-enemy very early!

Blair texts the bounty hunter (named Bowser) to collect the money but Sterling is fretting.
Bowser works at a Frozen Yoghurt cafe. He takes them to the back in his office to get the cash.
He gives them the cash and Sterling asks Bowser how much it would be to fix the truck. When
he says $5k, Sterling asks if there are any more bounty hunter jobs. Bowser’s next bounty is
for a John Stevens. The twins realise that John Stevens is April’s father and they offer to help
capture him at The Men’s Parlor. They raise how the Parlor is very racist so Bowser agrees to the
partnership on this one.

The twins walk into The Men’s Parlor and they are caught by Miles, their friend. Blair seduces
Miles to get information on where John Stevens is. They find the room where John Stevens is
and overhear a group of men talking. They find out that John Stevens did not do the crime — he
was protecting his business partner. They return to Bowser and lie, stating that their target was
not inside.

The twin’s parents find out about the car and they are fuming. The parents give them a dress
down — they are told to pay for the repairs or they’ll be going to a public school. So now the
characters have a reason to bounty hunt — they desperately need the money.

The twins meet Bowser and ask for work and explain they have power in the community.
Bowser says he wants John Stevens but the twins question his innocence. Bowser reveals he
knows they are not bounty hunters as he did his research, including looking at their TikToks.
As he kicks the twins out, Bowser gives the evidence that John Stevens committed battery on a
prostitute. The twins now want to find him.

The twins approach April and lie that her father has offered to sponsor their field trip to the
soup kitchen — they ask her where he is. April knows they are lying and calls them little tramps
— she also threatens to reveal that Sterling has lost her virginity... and so the war begins...

Sterling creates a fake social media profile to try and find April’s father — they follow John
Stevens so they can tag his address. Episode 1 shows how resourceful these teenagers are.

The twins head to the address where John Stevens is and skirt around the mansion with
their pistol and shotgun. Blair says that the adventure makes her *****. Sterling approaches
John Stevens and hits him with her gun. They capture him very casually.

The twins now work at the Yoghurt cafe but secretly they are bounty hunters. Bowser tells
their parents that their daughters do a good job.

The twins try and negotiate with Bowser. He tells them they have no leverage to negotiate if
they want to work with him.
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What’s a Jennings

Season 1
Episode Number: 2
Season Episode: 2

Originally aired: Friday August 14, 2020
Writer: Robert Sudduth
Director: Mark A. Burley
Show Stars: Maddie Phillips (Sterling Wesley), Anjelica Bette Fellini (Blair Wesley),

Kadeem Hardison (Bowser Jenkins), Virginia Williams (Debbie Wesley),
Mackenzie Astin (Anderson Wesley), Shirley Rumierk (Yolanda Carrion)

Guest Stars: Ezekiel Adams (Christian Rocker), Lisa Shatterly Boyd (Church
Woman #1), Charity Cervantes (Hannah B), Nicholas Cirillo (Jennings),
Jeff Cole (Harland Booth), Presley Coley (Girl Peer), Carolyn Jones
Ellis (Cathy), Wynn Everett (Ellen Johnson), Eric Graise (Ezekiel),
Devon Hales (April Stevens), Carrie Walrond Hood (Lynn Creswell),
Spencer House (Luke Creswell), Haroon Khan (Omar), Sahil Lalani (De-
bate Student), Chad Martin (Church Man #1), Ethan McDowell (Ver-
non Creswell), Method Man (Terrance Coin), Leydi Morales (Cashier),
Jerald Jay Savage (Church Man #2), Drew Schultz (Man with Gui-
tar), Ghevon Sebastian (Student), Given Sharp (Horny Lorna), Kris-
ten Shawn (Melissa Edwards), Emily Trossarello (Partygoer), Jade Wu
(Linda Chu), Malik Norman (Debate Student)

Summary: The girls buckle down to bounty hunter basics while working on rela-
tionship pressures.

The episode begins with the twin sisters
practicing their bounty hunter flair. Blair
criticizes Sterling’s approach. The char-
acters seem to be taking on this new life
rather well. Suddenly, both women panic
as they have to get to Church in twelve
minutes.

They manage to get to Church. The
pastor does an adult-themed sermon and
talks about sex. He issues a challenge to
the married couples; to have sex every
day. Blair whispers to Sterling that she’s
already doing the challenge.

At work, Blair is frustrated that her sister beat her to sex as she hasn’t sealed the deal with
Jennings yet. Sterling reveals she and Luke are in love which is why they had sex. Blair wants
to fall in love very quickly so they can have sex — there’s no way you can just fall in love though
which makes it funny.

Bowser wants a story of how they met for Yolanda, the woman that gives them bounties —
the story clearly doesn’t work. The next assignment is Kenneth Chu, a counterfeiter. The twin
sisters reveal they have wigs for different missions — Blair starts to pretend to be Russian to try
to prove her point. Bowser tells them that they cannot have this mission but they can ride with
him. He’s easing them into this slowly.

While out and about with Bowser, Blair talks of how she and Jennings need to have sex.
Bowser reveals that they are at their last known address of Kenneth. He asks them to enter the
care home and pretend to be offering services from the Church. When they get inside, they let
Bowser in from the back exit.
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There is a Linda Chu at the care home and she says she hasn’t seen her son Kenneth for a
year. Afterward, Blair realizes Linda called him "Tookie" so she finds his social media account.
Blair suggests they do a stakeout. Bowser agrees to this stakeout but without phones. He’s
clearly not enjoying the generations before him that cannot stop being on social media.

Sterling leads her first Fellowship group and gives them all religious advice. The teacher gives
Sterling her parking space. While in prayer, April returns and claims her father is in Tokyo (when
he’s really in prison) — the twins play it cool.

And then it happens... April shows Sterling the torn condom and asks her to resign as leader
of the Fellowship by Friday. To stop April’s blackmail, Sterling and Blair spread a rumor that a
dropped condom was found on the floor at the Fellowship and it spreads around the Academy
like wildfire. The sisters have foiled the blackmail.

Blair continues to try fall in love with Jennings by asking him soul mate questions from a
lifestyle website. However, the questions are not working and they are not falling in love.

The stakeout begins and Blair tells Sterling she’s dying of horniness. Blair gets impatient
and enters a waxing establishment to find Kenneth Chu. She asks the woman who waxes her
questions about her boyfriend Kenneth Chu but she catches on to what’s happening and the
woman flees. Bowser is angry and states that if he doesn’t get paid, they don’t get paid.

Jennings tells Blair that they aren’t in love. They start sharing things with each other; the pair
admit they don’t like each other either and break up on the spot. This was one of the quickest,
most cutthroat break-ups in history.

April is not giving up on her blackmail and tells Luke that she knows he has strayed with
Sterling. Luke is flabbergasted. Sterling approaches April about her threat to Luke — April tells
Sterling to resign or she will oust both her and Luke. They talk about her father briefly and April
is upset about what her father did to the sex worker, stating that sex workers deserve to be safe.

The twins head to the drug store to get a new heat pad for their father. When they try to pay,
the cashier tells them the notes are fake — they got the cash from the change at the food stand
at the care home. They alert Bowser and say Kenneth Chu must have been there. The mission
is back on so they need to think of a new alibi for their parents. The twins promise not to tell
anyone about their bounty hunter life.

With Bowser, the twins head to the care home — he tells one of them to kick down the doors.
They finally find Kenneth Chu in one of the rooms and then chase after him. Linda Chu sees
what is happening and sounds the alarm. They catch him and the twins have the money to pay
back their parents.

The twins talk about catching the Pastor buying cigarettes at the store. Sterling wonders if
that means she can own her sins at the Fellowship just like the Pastor did.

At the Fellowship, Sterling tells everyone that she and Luke are having sex and the condom
wrapper was hers. Everyone laughs, thinking it’s a joke. April stands up and says they are telling
the truth and shows the ripped condom. The others believe the condom belongs to April but
Sterling stands up and admits it is her condom. She states that she’s a good person and God
loves her as the room goes quiet.

An upset Sterling tells Ellen that she wants to stand down as Fellowship leader. Ellen ap-
plauds her for self-care and going after her desires.
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This Must Be How Dumb Kids Feel

Season 1
Episode Number: 3
Season Episode: 3

Originally aired: Friday August 14, 2020
Writer: Shane Kosakowski
Director: Andrew DeYoung
Show Stars: Maddie Phillips (Sterling Wesley), Anjelica Bette Fellini (Blair Wesley),

Kadeem Hardison (Bowser Jenkins), Virginia Williams (Debbie Wesley),
Mackenzie Astin (Anderson Wesley), Shirley Rumierk (Yolanda Carrion)

Guest Stars: Ezekiel Adams (Christian Rocker), Zach AL-Chokhachi (Rookie Cop),
Chris Cavalier (Draven), Charity Cervantes (Hannah B), Myles Evans
(Miles), Eric Graise (Ezekiel), Devon Hales (April Stevens), Spencer
House (Luke Creswell), Nichele Lambert (Student #2), Terry Lamothe
(Student), Kevin Lombard (Christian Rocker), Alexis Louder (Clea Kin-
caid), Shaun Michael Lynch (Veteran Cop), Summer Madison (Denise),
Jasmine Martin (Bad Kid #2), Athena McDowell (Barbara Taquito
Rep), Hedy Nasser (Student #1), Jacob Rhodes (Franklin), Suzanne
Salhaney (Saleswoman-Julie), Dwight Tolar (Policeman (credit only)),
John Varkados (Crime Scene SID), Andrew Yackel (Jam Band Hippy
#2), Malik Norman (Debate Student)

Summary: In between tracking an elusive bail jumper, Blair goes on a date with
Miles, and Sterling searches for friends beyond her Fellowship group.

The opener shows how a Confederate
statue’s head has been cut off and it’s the
talk of the town with police everywhere.
In terms of Sterling, she’s dreading go-
ing to school after the "sex reveal" in the
Fellowship but Blair reassures her. When
she gets to Willingham Academy there’s
an eeriness around her. April tells her she
cannot join the Fellowship because oth-
ers are processing the news of what she
did. Luke also feels humiliated after his
golf team oust him — they’ve taken away
his captainship.

Bowser tells the twins about their next target — a woman arrested for cutting the head off a
Confederate statue. The twins think the woman is a badass. Bowser says they need to figure out
which statue she’s going to get next — there are 174 confederate statues in Atlanta. The twins
ask if Bowser is comfortable with capturing this woman as she’s clearly doing it for anti-racism.
Bowser explains that his job is to capture bounties.

The twins and the family join their grandparents for lunch. The grandmother has memory
issues that raise concerns on the table. The twin’s father is trying to impress the grandfather by
talking about bringing in more business. He wants to be a partner in the family business.

The grandfather talks about how he is disgusted about the Confederate statues being taken
down; Blair cannot help herself and states it is a brave political statement — the grandfather
leaves the table.

The twins and Bowser meet a Confederate museum owner to try and find some logic of where
Clea is going to go next. They figure that Belwood Park will be the next target but they aren’t
entirely certain.
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Sterling tries to find a new group of friends at school. The new group she tries to join are devil
worshippers but she finds it a conflict of interest, obviously. Meanwhile, Blair sees Miles out of
his work clothes and in his own clothes. She suddenly finds him very attractive and makes it
into a proper date at Bargain Hole — she purposefully dressed down to try put him off but this
has obviously backfired now. Miles brings up a college party he needs to go to and she wants to
go. Blair rings Sterling about the college party and announces that "Miles is hot". And the new
romance for Blair starts from here.

The twin’s parents argue about getting more involved in the family business. The mother just
wishes that the man she married stood up for herself more — "I miss that man". Later on, the
father sticks up for himself and tells the grandfather that he quits the business. He then kisses
his wife after his bravery.

Blair enters the college party looking her best self and Miles is impressed. She wants to look
cool and chill and tells Sterling to calm down. The twin sisters clearly don’t know how to act cool.

Bowser ends up teaming up with a group of racists as they vow to protect the statue and "get
her good" which concerns him. He realizes that the statue is made out of granite and texts the
twins that there is no way that Clea could cut the head off with a metal saw.

The party continues and the twins seem to be enjoying themselves. Another girl is trying to
hit on Miles and Blair doesn’t know what to do — the other girl is black and is talking about the
statues and her theories. Blair tries to fit in by stating that she supports Clea. It ends up in an
argument where Miles calls her out for thinking all black people need to have the same opinion.
He then points out that Blair didn’t want to date him at first. She has no time to resolve the
issue as Sterling drunkenly shouts she knows where the next statue is going to be and throws
up everywhere.

The twins leave the party and Sterling rings Bowser with the location of the next statue.
Bowser leaves the racists behind and they find Clea cutting off the head of the statue. Blair says
she’s cool and tells Bowser to let her go but he states he’s just doing his job. Bowser tells Clea to
finish cutting off the head before taking her in.

Sterling asks Clea why she cuts off the heads of Confederate statues near schools — Clea
explains that she doesn’t like children walking by every day, looking up to men who loved owning
people.

Blair meets Miles while he’s at work and wants to pick him up for a real date — she asks him
for a chance as she didn’t realize he was hot. At least she was honest...

At school, Sterling is still lonely and now she’s been judged for partying which was seen on
Instagram. She manages to turn it around and she says she was brought back by the lord and
she finally has the attention again from the Fellowship — April is not amused at all.

When Sterling gets home her mother is mad that she’s been drinking at a college party. The
mother says that if she wants to live under this roof there’s no drinking. She sends Sterling to a
tent outside.
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Basically Pluto

Season 1
Episode Number: 4
Season Episode: 4

Originally aired: Friday August 14, 2020
Writer: Aziza Barnes
Director: Lauren Morelli
Show Stars: Maddie Phillips (Sterling Wesley), Anjelica Bette Fellini (Blair Wesley),

Kadeem Hardison (Bowser Jenkins), Virginia Williams (Debbie Wesley),
Mackenzie Astin (Anderson Wesley), Shirley Rumierk (Yolanda Carrion)

Guest Stars: Myles Evans (Miles), Annunziata Gianzero (Charlotte Burton), Bran-
don Gibson (Security Guard Duncan), Eric Graise (Ezekiel), Randy
Havens (John Slack), Carrie Walrond Hood (Lynn Creswell), Spencer
House (Luke Creswell), Saadiqa Muhammad (Geraldine Hanning), Ma-
lik Norman (Debate Student)

Summary: Sterling and Blair can’t escape relationship drama when they use the
well-heeled guests at their mom’s book club party as bait to catch a
scammer.

Luke and Sterling wake up together out-
side in the tent; Sterling is fretting that
her mother will find them together (wait
until she finds out that she isn’t a virgin!).
Luke quickly departs like a mad man. At
breakfast, Sterling’s mother is still angry
about her drinking. Sterling apologizes
but her mother isn’t accepting it.

Blair and Miles are already smitten
with each other. They call each other
"mad sexy". She tells Sterling that Miles
"Gets her". Blair feels like he is grounded.
Sterling doesn’t want to talk about Miles,

she wants to be back in the house. The sisters are at odds with each other for the first time —
one is smitten while the other one feels out of place.

The next target given to them by Yolanda is Kendra Saint John who is a scammer who throws
jewelry parties; the items are fake. They need to find a way to lure Kendra in "Basically Pluto".

At a book club, Sterling serves the guests for her mother to try and earn brownie points and
it seems to be working, a little bit. The issue is that the other mothers keep on talking about
Sterling’s drinking and her mother has to keep defending her. Miles shows up as the valet and
Blair is mortified that her mother hired him — she needs to rearrange her bedroom. She’s also
worried that her soon-to-be boyfriend has shown up to her rich house when he thinks she’s
grounded.

Bowser calls the twins and says they believe Kendra is outside the house for the book club.
However, when they get outside it’s not Kendra, it’s a man named John Slack who says she
couldn’t make it. The twins’ plan to lure Kendra has failed. The twins update Bowser and he
asks them if they’ve ever interrogated anyone. John Slack has started selling already to the
book club. The twins start interrogating him and pretend it’s an interview for an article they are
working on.

Blair gets to the point and asks about Kendra — it’s funny how she cannot help herself. John
states that he and Kendra are a team. Blair tries to make out that bosses are manipulative which
scares John off.
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Blair leaves John with Sterling and goes outside to give Miles some food and she acts super
weird around him. Meanwhile, outside the cops get involved and want to know what Bowser is
up to. They want his paperwork so he reluctantly shows them. The cops raise how Bowser was
the man who shot officer Atticus in Florida.

Sterling’s mother finds out at the party that Sterling had sex with Luke (awkward!). All the
mother’s eyes look at Sterling. Her mother ends the book club early as she’s shocked and upset
at the news. Luke’s mother raises how she’s disappointed in Sterling but Sterling’s mother says
it takes two to tango before walking off. Sterling’s eyes fill with tears.

As for John, he’s leaving the party and Blair is trying to stop him from leaving. She accuses
him of covering up for Kendra and John runs off. Eventually, she manages to get John to the
ground; she asks him to refund the credit card transactions from the book club and give infor-
mation on Kendra.

Blair is still acting weird with Miles. He asks what’s going on with her as she’s been strange
all day. She tells him to not show up unannounced like that. Miles apologizes. Blair says that
he told her he likes her because she’s down to earth and then shows up at her rich house. Blair
imagined Miles coming to her house for the first time as her boyfriend. The pair are starting to
recognize each other as a couple.

When Blair drops Miles off at his house, she learns he is also rich — his parents have high-
paying jobs. They both agree they are now boyfriend/girlfriend.

Sterling and her mother finally speak. Her mother doesn’t know how to feel. Sterling doesn’t
understand how something that feels so good can be so wrong, especially when she’s in love. Her
mother hugs her as she cries. Sterling admits she was never going to tell her mother and her
mother states that breaks her heart — "You are my whole world". The mother and daughter have
a heart to heart and the mother is relieved that she used condoms.

Afterward, Luke plays Sterling his guitar on video call before he is accosted by his mother.
Both sisters lay in bed together after a difficult day. Yolanda calls and asks to meet them in

a diner. Bowser tells them he was in jail for 47 minutes and that he was arrested for colorful
language — he reveals he used to be a cop and one day he was at a pride parade and he was
assigned to protect Shelita Pancake — Florida’s number 1 drag queen. He heard a car backfire
and thought it was a gunshot; he explains he got his gun out too quick and shot Officer Atticus
in the nose — it was a horse. Every squad laughed at him so he quit the police force — he has a
bad experience with the police.

The twins state they can still get to Kendra and take a trip to Knoxville — that’s where she
apparently is. Bowser walks out and tells them to forget it. Yolanda tells the twins to give him
space. Sterling wonders if God put them here to fix Bowser.
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Death Is Bad

Season 1
Episode Number: 5
Season Episode: 5

Originally aired: Friday August 14, 2020
Writer: Zoë Jarman
Director: Rebecca Asher
Show Stars: Maddie Phillips (Sterling Wesley), Anjelica Bette Fellini (Blair Wesley),

Kadeem Hardison (Bowser Jenkins), Virginia Williams (Debbie Wesley),
Mackenzie Astin (Anderson Wesley), Shirley Rumierk (Yolanda Carrion)

Guest Stars: Ezekiel Adams (Christian Rocker), Chris Cavalier (Draven), Charity
Cervantes (Hannah B), Mia Ella Clyburn (Mini Golf Kid #2), Ash-
ley Dougherty (Moonstone), Lexi Durham (Fellowship Student), Myles
Evans (Miles), Wynn Everett (Ellen Johnson), Eric Graise (Ezekiel),
Alec Guthrie (Prep School Student), Devon Hales (April Stevens),
Spencer House (Luke Creswell), Haroon Khan (Omar), Sahil Lalani
(Debate Student), Terry Lamothe (Student), Chantal Maurice (Cherry
Grigio), Method Man (Terrance Coin), Anna Rappaport (Cheerleader),
Jacob Rhodes (Franklin), Ghevon Sebastian (Student), Given Sharp
(Horny Lorna), Briana Starks (Apricot), Ann Charles Sutton (Mini Golf
Kid #1), Leigh Takata (Dancer), Charlie Talbert (Richard Koontz), Clyde
C Harris (Dancer), Malik Norman (Debate Student)

Summary: While helping Bowser pursue a wily exotic dancer, the twins process a
teacher’s untimely passing by making major relationship decisions.

The opening of the episode sees teacher
Mr Koontz get on with his life. While eat-
ing his lunch on a park bench he chokes
to death on a sandwich. At school, Ster-
ling says she misses Luke now that she
cannot see him in her spare time. Blair
tells Sterling she plans to lose her vir-
ginity with Miles and both sisters are ex-
cited.

Over the intercom in class, it’s re-
vealed that substitute teacher Mr Koontz
died. Blair has no idea who he is. The sis-
ters realise this is the first time someone

has died in their life apart from pets. Luke tells the twin sisters that Mr Koontz is agnostic so he
won’t go to heaven.

Sterling asks Ellen and April if they can do a memorial for Mr Koontz but Ellen says they can’t
have a service for someone who isn’t strongly tied to the school. Sterling stays she will help plan
the memorial and April suddenly wants to be involved. April, Sterling and Luke will be planning
the service together. The rivalry between April and Sterling continues...

The sisters go to Bowser’s place and are surprised by how little he has in his small place.
He wants them to move the yoghurt toppings from his apartment to the shop. The sisters want
to continue to help Bowser to improve his wellbeing. Famous bounty hunter Terrance Coin is
getting an assignment from Yolanda and Bowser isn’t too happy to see him. Sterling and Blair
are so excited to see Terrance and find him inspiring.

Afterwards, Bowser calls Terrance a d*ck for asking about his eating regime. Yolanda gives
the group a new assignment — Cherry Grigio — an exotic dancer who owns 15 grand in parking
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tickets. Bowser calls her a "slippery stripper". He’s captured her before and doesn’t want to again
because she’s caused too much stress on his life.

Blair believes there’s something spiritual happening since Mr Koontz has died and rings
Miles about it. Miles recommends praying and then the pair talk about the date night they
have planned. When Blair gets home, she says a prayer for Mr Koontz and asks God to let him
into Heaven. She accidentally sets her Bible on fire and apologises to God.

The planning for the service begins and April goes into control mode. Sterling warns everyone
that the memorial needs to be respectful — "It needs to be a simple memorial for a simple man".
April irrationally quits and reminds Sterling she needs to do a eulogy. Luke and Sterling look at
Mr Koontz’s history for some inspiration.

Sterling suggests that the burning Bible could be a sign that Mr Koontz has been allowed into
Heaven. The sisters head to the strip club with Bowser to get Cherry Grigio — Bowser reminds
them again that she’s slippery.

Blaire and Sterling are impressed by how sexy the strip club is and how comfortable women
are in their own bodies. They see Cherry Grigio and Bowser suggests triangulating her. Cherry
wants to get her stuff but Blair doesn’t fall for it. Suddenly, Cherry is handed her baby and
Bowser realises how complicated it is all of a sudden. Bowser asks Cherry to find child care
before they take her in.

Sterling gets emotional looking at Mr Koontz’s Instagram and Blair sees her dead teacher by
the pool tables. Blair believes she has failed to usher Mr Koontz into heaven. She tells Bowser
that he could die any moment and she’s worried two ghosts will torment her. Blair is having a
crisis it seems, coupled with the prospect of losing her virginity to Miles.

Bowser tells Blair to consider that Heaven and Hell are constructs and that they may not
exist. He continues and says there’s no certainty with life and death so advises that she doesn’t
fret over it. This was wonderful advice and well-written into the show.

While Cherry Grigio waits for her sister to pick up her daughter, she has a set to do on the
stage. She dances on the poles and then dances on Bowser — he likes it. Suddenly, Bowser
believes the other strippers are trying to help her get out and splits up the routine. The crowd
boo him. There’s another obstacle as Cherry has a space cake — he can’t take her in if she has
drugs in her system. Bowser tells the sisters to go home and he will wait 12 hours.

The memorial starts and Luke is impressed. April shows up crying and making a scene. She’s
being extra. Sterling walks out and starts the memorial. Luke comes on the stage and does a
song with his guitar — the song is about Sterling more than Mr Koontz. You can tell Sterling is
irritated by Luke’s attempt to be romantic — the memorial means a lot to Sterling.

Blair leaves the memorial and Miles shows up worried about her — she tells Miles she’s not
sure about sex and he reassures her that there’s no rush. Blair talks of how the uncertainty of
everything is playing on the mind, especially with life and death. Miles tells her he just wants to
be with her.

Luke finally finishes his song and Sterling sarcastically thanks him. She then does the eulogy
and uses what she saw on Instagram for her speech. Everyone loves her speech.

Afterwards, Luke calls Sterling amazing. Sterling tells her it isn’t about her or them. She tells
him they are only together because of circumstances and that she’s not sure she wants this
relationship anymore. Luke is devastated as Sterling breaks up with him. She wants to learn
about herself before her life is planned out. She wants to be alone.

Bowser has handcuffed Cherry Grigio in the car, waiting for the edibles to wear off. She admits
to having a crush on Bowser and then leans in to kiss him. As she does, she pulls out a gun but
Bowser is one step ahead of her — he removed the bullets. Bowser tells her she should change
and that he was never going to fall for it As the episode ends, Sterling enjoys time alone. Blair
and Miles have sex; Blair says she’s happy. Miles is caring as she loses her virginity to him.
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Master Debater

Season 1
Episode Number: 6
Season Episode: 6

Originally aired: Friday August 14, 2020
Writer: Earl Davis
Director: Angela Barnes Gomes
Show Stars: Maddie Phillips (Sterling Wesley), Anjelica Bette Fellini (Blair Wesley),

Kadeem Hardison (Bowser Jenkins), Virginia Williams (Debbie Wesley),
Mackenzie Astin (Anderson Wesley), Shirley Rumierk (Yolanda Carrion)

Guest Stars: Ryan Baughman (Male Opponent), Chris Cavalier (Draven), Lexi
Durham (Fellowship Student), Carolyn Jones Ellis (Cathy), Andres Er-
ickson (Handsy Guy), Myles Evans (Miles), Wynn Everett (Ellen John-
son), Anthony Michael Frederick (Coach Esposito), Devon Hales (April
Stevens), Stephan Jones (Irritated Skip), Sahil Lalani (Debate Stu-
dent), Terry Lamothe (Student), Jordan Patrick (British Lad), Given
Sharp (Horny Lorna), Terrence Smith (Chill Skip), Brandon Stan-
ley (Bow-Tied Dandy), Darrius Thomas (Cocky Male Opponent), Tony
Aidan Vo (Craig Wu), Malik Norman (Debate Student)

Summary: Sterling sows some wild oats by checking out the competition at a
debate tournament, and a suspicious Blair enlists Miles to help spy
on her mom.

The episode opens with Sterling in a deep
sleep and she’s smiling; Luke is texting
her constantly. As for Blair, she’s also
happy after finally having sex and wakes
up Sterling; she tells her the news and
the number of times they had sex, includ-
ing the orgasm. Sterling shows Blair the
27 text messages from Luke and doesn’t
know what to do because she’s not feeling
sad about it.

At breakfast, the sisters learn that
their father is now unemployed and the
family now has to cut corners. The family

discusses how Sterling has a State Debate Competition coming up. April leads the debate team
and has a dossier of the opponents; she reminds Sterling that she screwed up the year before.
Sterling and April agree to be friends for the competition but afterward, they will be enemies.

Blair keeps talking about her orgasms and Sterling asks for boundaries as she’s clearly both-
ered about the repeated conversation. Sterling then declares she’s never had an orgasm with
Luke. Blair apologizes and explains that sex orgasms are hard for a girl. She is surprised that
Sterling has never masturbated or used toys to get an orgasm. She recommends that she does it
herself before having sex again — she also suggests hooking up with a few nerds.

Bowser has new targets; his idea is to capture a group of criminals all at once for a good
payday. The twin sisters see some flirting between Yolanda and Bowser and they want to clear
the way so they give an excuse not to do the latest mission so Yolanda and Bowser can do it
together. The twin sisters are highly intuitive individuals.

As they leave the bail bonds van they see their mother drive by and they are sh*tting them-
selves thinking she saw. When they get home they try and blag it with their mother; she doesn’t
seem bothered and says she didn’t stop because she was off to a social event. The sisters are
dumbstruck. Blair believes her mother was lying and wants to figure "what" she is lying about.
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Before the competition, April tries offering Sterling luck but she cannot muster up the words.
Blair tells Sterling to pull a "Nerd" at the competition to get more experience. In terms of Bowser,
he’s capturing the coupon scammers at the yogurt store. However, when taking them to the
police, the truck breaks down. Yolanda and Bowser seem to be getting closer on their trip.

At home, Blair’s mother tells Miles she likes how her daughter hangs out with different cul-
tures, basically saying he’s black; such an awkward conversation and a social scenario I have
been in countless times. Blair wants to follow her mother’s car.

At the debate competition, Sterling does well in her first round. April congratulates her and
asks where’s she’s getting all the confidence; it’s because Sterling is making out with the nerds
and gaining experience, just like Blair told her to.

Further into the debate competition, April does not make it to the final because her opposition
brought up her father which threw her off. April gives Sterling advice on the final and gives her
a scoop on the finalist. Sterling does not want to stoop low and make it personal — it’s about
the opponent’s mother who has been having an affair. April argues with Sterling about the time
she took her away from her friendship group when younger — Sterling doesn’t remember but
apologizes. April walks off upset and tells Sterling if she has a shred of decency she should use
the scoop and win the final.

Blair continues to spy on her mother; Miles leaves the stakeout early. Her mother starts
crying on the park bench and then answers her phone and starts screaming and shouting.
Blair’s mother then texts Blair saying, "Tea will be late, stuck in traffic".

Bowser thanks Yolanda for sticking around and they agree that they make a great team.
Yolanda asks Bowser why he didn’t lock it down after their "One night" together. The two argue
a little but it ends with them both laughing. Bowser then asks about her sister (who he used to
be with) and Yolanda is bothered by the conversation and leaves.

In the debate final, Sterling hesitates but then she doesn’t use the information that April gives
her. April is furious but Sterling apologizes about their childhood. April doesn’t want her apolo-
gies and states their relationship is now as worse than ever. Sterling walks off and masturbates
in a storage room while thinking about April — she has her first orgasm. She’s finally realized
what makes her tick — her enemy.

Blair continues to follow her mother; she sees her taking out a wad of cash in a random back
yard and then grab a shotgun.
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Cleave or Whatever

Season 1
Episode Number: 7
Season Episode: 7

Originally aired: Friday August 14, 2020
Writer: Megan King Kelly
Director: Diego Velasco
Show Stars: Maddie Phillips (Sterling Wesley), Anjelica Bette Fellini (Blair Wesley),

Kadeem Hardison (Bowser Jenkins), Virginia Williams (Debbie Wesley),
Mackenzie Astin (Anderson Wesley), Shirley Rumierk (Yolanda Carrion)

Guest Stars: Charity Cervantes (Hannah B), Jillana Darby (Jocelyn Durbin), Myles
Evans (Miles (voice)), Wynn Everett (Ellen Johnson), Eric Graise
(Ezekiel), Devon Hales (April Stevens), Spencer House (Luke Creswell),
Haroon Khan (Omar), Sahil Lalani (Debate Student), Steven Legate
(Gary Durbin), Matt Peters (Deacon Wesley), Jacob Rhodes (Franklin),
Given Sharp (Horny Lorna), Arlene Tur (Michelle), Malik Norman (De-
bate Student), Chad J. Wagner (Church parishioner)

Summary: Blair digs for clues about her mom’s past, Sterling partners with April
on a school project, and both twins get an eyeful during a stakeout
with Bowser.

The twin sisters are doing target prac-
tice with guns (of course) and Blair raises
her concerns about their mother Debbie.
Sterling is refusing to consider that their
mother is a criminal mastermind and be-
lieves Blair is doing what she always does
— stirring things up. Blair then apolo-
gizes to Sterling that she’s not had an or-
gasm yet — Sterling has not told her sis-
ter that she did have one while imagining
April.

At school, when April joins the class,
Sterling is feeling smitten by her. One of

the classmates states that April’s father started trial today so it’s best not to talk to her. The
students are tasked with creating a Biblical Building — April suggests doing Solomon’s Temple.
Sterling and April agree to pair up — Sterling got what she wanted and April has no idea.

At the yogurt cafe, Bowser’s ex-wife Michelle shows up and Yolanda is there too. Yolanda is
clearly bothered about the situation. His ex is here to look for a potential producer for her music.
Yolanda thinks her sister needs funding from Bowser for the album — she tells the twin sisters
that Michelle always uses Bowser for money.

Bowser insists he is not addicted to his ex-wife. The conversation turns quickly — they have
a new target: Gary Durbin who has been dealing amphetamines.

Blair believes that their father Anderson knows about their mother’s secret life. She tells
Sterling that she needs her to wring information out of him while hunting. Sterling cannot join
as she’s doing the school project with April.

Blair and her father go out hunting. Anderson is not wanting to speak too much; he wants
to concentrate. Grandfather and Uncle Deacon joins the hunting. Blair keeps on trying to get
information on their mother. Uncle Deacon reveals her mother once won a sharpshooter award.
Like mother and daughter really — the story is doing well to keep the hints at bay; we have no
idea what her mother has done at this stage.
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Sterling and April get on with their school project — Sterling is clearly feeling a little over-
whelmed by her infatuation. April tells Sterling she never got what she saw in Luke. The pair talk
about books and begin bonding. April raises how her father used to read books.

Yolanda heads over to Bowser’s place and he gives her an update on the target. Michelle is
there and Yolanda asks her why she is here. She tells Michelle that she cannot use Bowser again
and that he’s still hung up on her and barely hanging on. Bowser overhears what Yolanda said
and he’s offended. Yolanda tells Bowser she’s not going to pick up the pieces again.

Blair starts seeing holes in her father’s story about her mother. Anderson gets frustrated and
tells her to be quiet — he is flustered. Blair updates Sterling and then joins Bowser for their next
bounty. Bowser is frustrated and the twin sisters are disappointed that he’s considering getting
back with Michelle. Sterling asks if someone can catch feelings for a friend (clearly referring to
April).

Bowser, Sterling, and Blair find Gary Durbin in a motel room with two naked women and they
end up chasing after him. Sterling shoots some lights so Gary stands on glass and falls over.
Sterling asks one of the women who was in the motel room about what she should do about April
— she tells Sterling to take it slow and give it a go and see what happens.

Back to the school project; Sterling brings up two women in the Bible that were rumored to
be a couple. The pair then talk about other interpretations in the Bible. April thinks it is strange
that Sterling is bringing up this subject.

Bowser tells Yolanda that he has changed. Yolanda apologizes and says she shouldn’t have
got involved; she iterates that he is her best friend and she doesn’t want him to get hurt.

Debbie and Anderson talk to their twin sisters about parts of their mother’s life. Debbie states
she’s had a difficult time talking about her mother and father who have apparently died; she
said before her parents went to the airport, they had a big fight and she said some awful things.
Afterward, her parents left to fly out to New York and she never saw them again. Debbie gives
this guilt-ridden, sympathy story that the twin sisters buy.

Debbie gets out a box to show the twins some photos so they can learn about her. Blair
goes to bed and her father chases after her. He tells her that questioning stuff is important and
she doesn’t want her to lose that. Maybe that’s not the advice you give if your wife is hiding
something...

Afterward, Debbie mouths something to Anderson and he angrily walks off.
Michelle returns to Bowser’s apartment and she talks about the costs of the album but that

she’s found a financier. Bowser is happy that she isn’t using him. He asks her if she’s changed.
Michelle says she doesn’t need to change as he was the one that stopped trying — she also claims
that Yolanda doesn’t know him as much as she does. Michelle walks out and states he will regret
this when he tells her that he is going to go down a different path for once. Bowser is a tentative
character and it was relieving to see him genuinely stick up for himself.

At school, Sterling and April get an A+ for their project and they are elated. The teacher Ellen
asks them both to lock up and leaves them alone in a room. April brings up her father again and
how her family isn’t a good team because of him and starts getting upset — Sterling cannot help
herself and kisses April and then follows up with an apology. April walks to the door and locks it
and kisses Sterling back.
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From Basic to Telenovela

Season 1
Episode Number: 8
Season Episode: 8

Originally aired: Friday August 14, 2020
Writer: Tara Herrmann
Director: Stephanie Laing
Show Stars: Maddie Phillips (Sterling Wesley), Anjelica Bette Fellini (Blair Wesley),

Kadeem Hardison (Bowser Jenkins), Virginia Williams (Debbie Wesley),
Mackenzie Astin (Anderson Wesley), Shirley Rumierk (Yolanda Carrion)

Guest Stars: Dianna Catterton (Waitress), Charity Cervantes (Hannah B), Lexi
Durham (Fellowship Student), Carolyn Jones Ellis (Cathy), Myles
Evans (Miles), Alec Guthrie (Prep School Student), Devon Hales (April
Stevens), Carrie Walrond Hood (Lynn Creswell), Spencer House (Luke
Creswell), Sahil Lalani (Debate Student), Terry Lamothe (Student),
Ethan McDowell (Vernon Creswell), Method Man (Terrance Coin),
Jacob Rhodes (Franklin), Erika Robel (Señora O’Reilly), Alet Taylor
(Charlie), Tequilla Whitfield (Jojo), Malik Norman (Debate Student)

Summary: Blair and Sterling’s double life catches up with them when their
respective romantic plans interfere with Bowser’s hunt for a drug-
trafficking DJ.

At school, Sterling is daydreaming look-
ing at April. She’s too distracted and
Blair snaps her out of it. It’s a Spanish
club and Luke stands up and says, "They
broke up" — he’s not over Sterling. The
teacher writes down ideas for a Telenov-
ela based on the discussions around her.

After class, Sterling asks April if she
wants to talk and asks about her father.
They both decide to meet at a "neutral
and undetectable" ground. They meet at
an arcade; April asks Sterling if she’s told
anyone about them — that they are gay.

Sterling asks how can you know if you are gay. April explains it all to Sterling — she’s only ever
crushed on girls. April tells Sterling that she is her first. Sterling isn’t ready to label herself yet
but she states she likes April. This makes April smile. The pair then hook up in laser quest. Af-
terward, April makes some ground rules; they must be sworn enemies at school and Blair cannot
know.

Bowser shows the twins a new assignment — Adam Johanneson; he’s guilty of trafficking
loads of drugs. The twins then tease Bowser about Yolanda but he insists they are keeping it
professional. They need to learn the whereabouts of Adam which requires an investigation.

In Spanish class, April and Sterling have to partner up. They talk in Spanish together and
April asks Sterling if she’d like to join her in a pool on a hot day and they end up giggling. Blair
thinks they are enemies still and sticks up for her sister.

Blair and Bowser do a stakeout; Blair is getting impatient as she’s got plans with Miles and
she has asked Sterling to join the mission so she can enjoy her night with her boyfriend. They
enter the building and it’s a music studio; they ask the receptionist for the name of the person
in the VIP studio. Blair sneaks away from the studio and goes on her date with Miles — the
character is multitasking. She’s trying to rush the date on and then heads back to the bounty
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hunting. She also rings Sterling and asks her to hurry up. While at the studio, Blair believes a
woman is flirting with Bowser.

Sterling and April find a way to sneak into a room with each other at school. They talk about
how all the lying comes with benefits. Sterling wants them to be "Together, together" and not
private. April says she isn’t that brave but Sterling says she is done hiding parts of herself. April
gets upset suddenly and walks away.

Meanwhile, Blair returns to her date, and Miles wonders where she went. Miles sees texts
from her boss and he tells her to go and do what she needs to do.

As Sterling heads out to help Blair, April grabs her and says, "Convince me that we can do
this". She wants to debate it. After Sterling lists her points and counter argues, April kisses her.

Blair returns to Bowser and the girl who fancies him asks Blair to test out a studio — she’s
pretended to be a music artist. She starts singing and a few musicians start playing their instru-
ments and she gets into it.

Afterward, Blair returns to Miles; he asks her why she’s playing him. She tries explaining
that she is caught up with something. Miles wants Blair to be straight with him and accuses
her of liking drama. She can’t tell him and he wonders if she’s in "some kind of trouble". Mile
states he likes her but they are operating on different frequencies. He kisses her on the forehead
and breaks up with her. She’s left standing there, devastated. This was a painful scene to watch
because Blair absolutely adores Miles — it makes the scene worse.

April and Sterling continue to hook up. Blair rings Sterling but she doesn’t answer. Her sister
wasn’t there for her. It’s about to explode between them.

Debbie and Anderson have a drink with Luke’s parents. They talk about Sterling and Luke.
It’s evident that both couples are having marriage difficulties. Debbie and Anderson start having
an intense argument that ends dinner early. When their guests leave, Debbie says they need to
protect their family at all costs. The pair make up but Anderson states that it’s "always the last
time". Debbie promises that it will be and then they can live their lives free.

Bowser updates Yolanda and states he’s got a nice juicy lead on Adam after talking to that
woman from the studio. He suggests going out to celebrate but then Terrance Coin shows up
behind her. Bowser doesn’t buy Yolanda’s excuse and walks off. Yolanda runs after him and
Bowser tells her that she only needs Terrance for work and asks her to take him out of the
rotation. Yolanda tells him that he cannot be mad at her for not having a life that doesn’t cater
to him.

Bowser declares that "He’s out".
Blair cries at home with her mother Debbie. She tells her mother she couldn’t give Miles

enough time and attention. Blair asks Debbie if her marriage is okay with her father. When her
mother leaves the room, Blair texts her sister saying "**** you".

Blair then looks at a photo of her mother in front of a place called Hobo’s Ham. At the back of
the photo, it says "Savannah, GA 1996. Blair googles Hobo’s Ham and the address is Nandina,
GA. Downstairs, Debbie and Anderson are looking at long term rental homes in Mexico.
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Our Ham is Good

Season 1
Episode Number: 9
Season Episode: 9

Originally aired: Friday August 14, 2020
Writer: Jenji Kohan
Director: Stephen Falk
Show Stars: Maddie Phillips (Sterling Wesley), Anjelica Bette Fellini (Blair Wesley),

Kadeem Hardison (Bowser Jenkins), Virginia Williams (Debbie Wesley),
Mackenzie Astin (Anderson Wesley), Shirley Rumierk (Yolanda Carrion)

Guest Stars: Charity Cervantes (Hannah B), Lexi Durham (Fellowship Student),
Wynn Everett (Ellen Johnson), Heather Fusari (Darlene), Trey Gerrald
(Garrett), Eric Graise (Ezekiel), Beth Grant (Church Lady), Alec Guthrie
(Prep School Student), Devon Hales (April Stevens), Charlton Hoag
(Guard), Jef Holbrook (Nerdy Man), Spencer House (Luke Creswell),
Pierce Lackey (John Stevens), Terry Lamothe (Student), Method Man
(Terrance Coin), Kyle Pierce (Local Kid), Malik Norman (Debate Stu-
dent)

Summary: The twins take off on a road trip to uncover their mom’s secrets but
wind up revealing some of their own. Bowser reluctantly joins forces
with Terrance.

Sterling tries apologising to Blair about
the day before and not showing up. Blair
throws paper at her and reveals her and
Miles have broken up. She then tells
Sterling that their mother is lying just
to add fuel to the fire — these two are
not agreeing on anything. The sisters end
up fighting. Blair shows her mother as a
teenager in Savannah near Hobo’s Ham
— the place never franchised and there’s
only one in Nandina.

Blair states that everything before
1999 there’s nothing about their mother.

She’s off to Nandina — Sterling suggests that they go immediately.
At school, a couple of friends wonder who April was talking to on the phone (she was talking

to Sterling). They also ask about her scent and where she was the night before. April is struggling
to keep up the secret.

At the yoghurt store, Bowser is asleep on the office floor. He’s been drinking and starts ranting
about Yolanda. The twins tell Bowser to fight for the case and Yolanda rather than let Terrance
Coin have it all.

At the start of the road trip, Sterling asks Blair if she’d like to talk about Miles. Blair is very
angry, stating she has lost the love of her life. Sterling mentions she was with April which makes
Blair even angrier. She offers to call Miles to explain but there’s no way Blair will entertain such
a subject; the truth will only help in this situation.

Bowser visits Yolanda and apologizes, claiming he overreacted. Terrance is making cinnamon
rolls from scratch and Bowser has one — he’s impressed by how good they are. Terrance reveals
he has a cooking and an ASMR channel.

Bowser wants the Fren-Z case back but he has to work with Terrance.
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Debbie doesn’t know where her daughters are and rings someone saying, "What did you do
with my girls". She tries ringing her daughters and Sterling texts back saying they are "fine".
Debbie and Anderson are fretting, believing they are not fine. The secret is closing in on Debbie.

The twin sisters finally get to Nandina and go to Hobo’s Ham. They show a store staff member
a photo of their young mother and he says that her shirt is from a local church.

Debbie meets Bowser and asks where her daughters are. He covers their backs and says the
twins are not on the schedule to work so he doesn’t know where they are.

The twins head to the local church and see their mother’s maiden name on the board. Inside
the church they ask about the maiden name "Culpepper" — a woman who is running a rapture
class says she feels sorry for that family. The woman continues and says the daughter of the
family danced with the devil.

While out and about on their bounty hunt, Terrance says he has feelings for Yolanda and he
tells Bowser that he should have done something about his feelings after all this time. They head
out to meet a rich man called Perry who they believe would help Fren-Z get a private plane so he
isn’t caught.

The twin sisters head to town’s police administration office and ask a man to look up Debbie
Culpepper. There is no arrest record for their mother — the man said she may have done some-
thing when Debbie was a minor. Blair is frantic and does not accept the information and tells
Sterling it was a mistake bringing her here. And here we go...

Sterling tells Blair she’s apologized and that she could have rescheduled her date with Miles
but as usual, she chooses the highest drama possible — Blair does not like what her sister
said. Sterling lists all the dramas and says that Blair self-sabotaged her relationship. Blair tells
Sterling that she’s jealous of her and that she will get back with Luke and be married by 23 —
she accuses Sterling of having no guts and lives a boring life unlike her.

Sterling says she has guts and then reveals she’s hooking up with April and the reason she
wasn’t there for her sister is that she was following her heart — "She’s a girl. How’s that for
boring". Blair walks off.

You can tell Blair walked off half shocked but also half upset that the sisters have not been
there for each other in such pivotal moments in their lives.

Blair rings Bowser while he’s on a mission and she’s crying over Sterling. He tries to comfort
her and leaves Terrance to do the job. He tells her to feel what she feels and that it will get better.
Bowser has this father-figure on these girls all of a sudden.

Sterling rings April and explains that she told Blair in the middle of an intense argument.
April reassures her and says she will comfort her. Sterling thinks it’s time for the whole world to
know. As April puts down her phone, her father turns up. Meanwhile, Debbie sees the photo in
Blair’s room.

Bowser is embarrassed as Terrance made him look bad on his latest bounty hunter YouTube
video.

Garrett from the admin office rings Sterling about unsolved crimes and he has 16 results for
Debbie Culpepper; meanwhile, Debbie tells Anderson that "they know"; while Bowser trashes his
office, he sees Debbie’s Most Wanted poster.

The sisters see the unsolved crimes and look shocked.
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Something Sour Patch

Season 1
Episode Number: 10
Season Episode: 10

Originally aired: Friday August 14, 2020
Writer: Kathleen Jordan
Director: Nick Sandow
Show Stars: Maddie Phillips (Sterling Wesley), Anjelica Bette Fellini (Blair Wesley),

Kadeem Hardison (Bowser Jenkins), Virginia Williams (Debbie Wesley),
Mackenzie Astin (Anderson Wesley), Shirley Rumierk (Yolanda Carrion)

Guest Stars: Charity Cervantes (Hannah B), Kristopher Charles (Officer Reese),
Dani Deetté (Officer Brawner), Lexi Durham (Fellowship Student),
Myles Evans (Miles), Wynn Everett (Ellen Johnson), Eric Graise (Eze-
quiel), Devon Hales (April Stevens), Spencer House (Luke Creswell),
Terry Lamothe (Student), James McMenamin (Levi), Method Man (Ter-
rance Coin), Sipiwe Moyo (Tanisha Taylor), Jacob Rhodes (Franklin),
Given Sharp (Horny Lorna), Jamie Urena (FREN-Z Entourage), Mitch
Westphal (The Butler), Malik Norman (Debate Student)

Summary: After demanding the truth from their mom, the twins face a troubling
night filled with heartbreak, hardened criminals and shocking revela-
tions.

In the car, the sisters are still angry with
each other. They get home and their par-
ents are saying they were worried sick.
Blair cuts to the chase and starts listing
things about her mother and the church
she belongs to in Nandina, and the most
shocking part — she is a fugitive for first-
degree arson. The sisters demand the
truth.

Debbie admits she hasn’t been en-
tirely truthful about her past as she was
trying to protect them; in her past, she
ended up in the wrong extreme crowd and

acted out of hate — she set fire to an abortion clinic. She regrets it and was acting under the
influence of persuasive people. Debbie assures them she has protected them since and worked
very hard to give them this life.

The sisters ask if they are safe; their parents say they have lawyers and a plan. Debbie seems
relieved and wants her daughters to enjoy themselves to go to a lock-in. You just know that it
isn’t over from here — and you also know there are more twists to come.

Bowser asks the sisters to go to come to the Yoghurt shop. He asks them why they work for
him. He shows them the picture of their mother on a most wanted poster. The sisters try to argue
that they’ve just found out but he isn’t buying it. Bowser states that working with the sisters has
made him soft — he fires both of them.

They ask if he’s going to turn in their mother and says no, but because of them, he’s had to
give up his ethics and $90k. Bowser is mad understandably and he’s loving his new circle very
quickly.

Blair is upset because she feels rejected again. She opened up to Bowser so it’s another blow.
The sisters then talk about their argument in Nandina — Blair thinks it sucks that Sterling is
right; she makes the drama so life feels bad because of her actions. Blair doesn’t want to go to
the lock-in, she wants to be with Miles — she thinks she loves him.
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Sterling thinks she may be in love with April but she’s not sure. Blair tells her sister that she
doesn’t care that she’s gay.

Sterling goes to the overnight lock-in with her PJs and she learns April is running is late.
April finally turns up. Ellen the teacher is very excitable about it.

At the lock-in, April hasn’t saved her a spot and her sleeping bag is now next to Luke. Sterling
is frustrated and asks about the scavenger hunt but April isn’t showing interest.

Blair goes to Miles’ house and looks for Miles. She interrupts family dinner and asks if she
can speak to Miles. He says no so Blair gives her speech in front of the whole family. She tells
him that she feels like she belongs to him — "I love you, Miles". Miles’ mother asks him who Blair
is. Blair is upset that Miles didn’t tell his family about her.

He runs after Blair and says he is sorry and explains his mother is mid-campaign and that
Blair is the daughter of Republicans. Blair realises Miles was ashamed of her but he refutes that
idea, saying he had to fit in with his family. The pair argue about what Blair wants. Blair walks
off telling him he’s going to lose out.

At the lock-in, Sterling plays the playlist she and April created and she sees April crying in
the distance. She walks but, of course, it’s a lock-in so she can’t leave. Sterling breaks down next
to a door so April grabs the keys and unlocks it.

April stops Sterling and asks to sit with her. She tells Sterling she doesn’t want to come out
yet and she changed her mind. Sterling tries kissing her and she’s rejected — this was painful to
watch as you can feel Sterling’s world collapse at this moment. April is worried about her father
— he got cleared of his charges and he’s not a fan of the LGBTQ+ community. Sterling is shocked
that her father is out and thinks it will come back to bite him.

Luke tells Sterling he saw her crying and that he is here for her as a friend. He seems to have
matured. He asks Sterling if she can ask April out — with tears in her eyes, she says he can and
then she kisses him. Suddenly, her mother shows up and tells her to get in the car.

At home, Blair says she’s going to pick Sterling up because she’s not having a good time at
the lock-in. She gets a text back that she’s with her mother. But... Debbie is at home with Blair.
Debbie drops her plate.

In the car, Sterling notices things that don’t seem like her mother and she panics. Sterling
asks a test question and screams when the woman she’s with gets it wrong. It’s her mother’s
twin sister Dana. Back at home, Blair thinks it’s insane that her parents kept this secret from
them. Back in the car, Dana explains she did something that people didn’t like so she had to lay
low for 16 years — it was Dana that burned down the abortion clinic and Debbie and Anderson
made sure she was financially okay but recently she’s become dangerous again as they haven’t
provided everything that Dana has demanded.

Back in the car, Dana throws Sterling’s phone out of the car. At home, Blair is mad that they
lied. Despite Debbie not wanting to, Anderson states they are calling the police.

Bowser visits Yolanda and tells her he is leaving town for a little bit and that he’s going to
Florida. Yolanda reminds him that he left Florida for a reason. Yolanda clearly doesn’t want him
to leave but Bowser believes it’s a dead-end staying here because she’s with somebody, referring
to Terrance.

In the car with Dana, Sterling rants about how she wants to urinate so Dana pulls over.
Sterling uses her debit card to gets loads of Sour Patch sweets from a vending machine and
empties one of the bags on the floor. She then goes to the bathroom and prays to God and asks
for help.

Bowser is helping Blair find Sterling. She sees her bank transaction and they track down the
vending machine. Blair sees Sour Patch sweets on the floor — Sterling hates them but Blair loves
those sweets. They go to the bathroom and Sterling has left a message about Dana and the man
she’s meeting — Levi.

Blair has managed to recruit Bowser to help out. Bowser rings Terrance and asks about Levi;
he looks in a database and finds an address. Debbie rings Blair and she tells her mother to trust
her. At home, the police are being sceptical. Debbie secretly tells Anderson that she knows where
Dana might be heading and they sneak away from the police.

Dana and Sterling get to Levi’s place. Levi states this was not part of the plan but with the
new scenario, he’s going to ask for more money from the family. He tells Dana to put Sterling in
the bathroom. Sterling tells Dana to leave Levi and be a good Christian because she’s just a kid.
Dana is tempted but states it’s easier said than done and gags her.
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Blair talks to Sterling using their telepathic powers (it’s a twin thing apparently) and gives
Bowser the situation. The telepathic powers are put to good use.

Levi starts shooting his gun towards Bowser and Blair. Meanwhile, Sterling kicks down her
bathroom door. Dana grabs her and says they have to go. Bowser manages to get a shot on Levi’s
leg. Dana puts Sterling in the car but then Debbie shows up and puts a shotgun on her and tells
her sister to put the gun down. Sterling is saved.

Debbie looks at her sister Dana and tells her they gave her everything she asked for — "I
would never let you take my daughter from me".

Dana and Debbie suddenly telepathically talk to each other and Dana has a smile on her face
and says, "You gonna tell her or should I?". Season 1 ends with another good twist — Debbie
telepathically says she’s done everything for her and tells her not to say anything. Dana tells
Debbie that she can hear the sirens and this is it for her while she goes back to living her perfect
little life — "Then let me have this one last moment of truth".

Dana turns to Sterling and tells her she is her daughter. Blair and Sterling look at each other
in despair. Does this mean they are not twins?
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